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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year to 31 August 2017, The annual report serves the purposes of both a
Trustees' report and a Directors’ report under company law,

The multi academy operates eight primary schools serving catchment areas in Birmingham and Dudley
which are:

Jervoise Primary School (Birmingham)
Wychall Primary School (Birmingham)

The Oval Primary School (Birmingham)
Audley Primary School (Birmingham)
Princethorpe Infant School (Birmingham)
Bromley Pensnett Primary School (Dudley)
Beechwood C of E Primary School (Dudley)
Hob Green Primary School (Dudley)

L R I R I

They have a combined pupil capacity of 3,348 and had a roll of 3,231 in the school census on October
2017,

Conversion to academy trust
The company was incorporated at Companies House on 28 October 2014, Academy conversion

dates are presented in the following table. Signed commercial transfer agreements were signed three
weeks before the dates of conversion,

Name of school Conversion to academy
Jervoise Primary School 1 October 2015
Wychall Primary Schaol "1 October 2015
Bromlay Pensnett Primary_éc:hunl 1 October 2015
Beechwood C of E Primary School 1 October 2015
_Prlnt:ethﬂrpa Infant School 1 October 2016
Audley Primary School 1 October 2016
‘The Oval Primary School 1 September 2016
Hob Green Primary School 1 Nevember 2016

Structure, Governance, and Management
Constitution

The multi academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable
company's memorandum and articles of assoclation are the primary governing documents of the multi
academy trust, The Trustees of drb lgnité Multi Academy are also the Directors of the charitable company
for the purposes of company law. The charitable company Is known as drb Ignite Muitl Academy Trust,
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

Details of the Trustees who served during the period are Included in the Reference and Adminisirative
detalls on page 1,

Members’ liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company
in the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a
Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted
bafore they ceased to be a Mambar.

Trustees' indemnities

The Multi Academy Trust purchases indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Trustees which by
virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of
trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty In relation to the Multi Academy Trust, provided that any
insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the Trustees knew to be a
breach of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the Trustees in reckiess disregard to whether it
was a breach of trust or breach of duty or not and provided alse that any such insurance shall not extend to
the costs of any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in their
capacity as trustees of the Multi Academy Trust. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any
one claim.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Board is comprised primarily of Non-Executive Trustees. Non-Executive Trustees are appointed by the
Members with the intention that the Board should comprise of an effective combination of experience,
skills, and knowledge to fully meet the accountability requirements outlined in the Academies Financial
Handbaok,

Individuals appointed as Non-Executive Directors must demonstrate:

« aset of competencles required by the Trust Board and In line with the DIE Governance Handbook
and Competency Framework (2017)

= a commitment to maintaining a rigorous strategic oversight of Trust statutory, mandatory and
regulatory financial management and governance responsibilities in line with the Academies
Financial Handbook

= acommitment to get to know schools well

The Trust has one Executive director who |8 employed as an Executive Headteacher within the Trust,

The selection procedures for Trustees include local advertising, national advertising, website and other
social media technologies. An application and interview process is used involving a sub-set of Trustees and
final selection is approved / ratified by the full Trust Board.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Newly appointed Trustees attend induction sessions for new appointees, meet regularly with the Trust CEO
and Executive Leadership Team and In addition make visits to Trust schools. The Trusi has two
professional development plans for Trustees:

= Trust Training Plan for Trustees and Governors
= Trust Induction Plan for new Trustees

Further additional training is provided alongside school leaders en the Trust's Performance Accouniability
Framewaork and Pupil Progress Tracking System,
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

Policies and Proceduras Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees (continuad)

One Trustee is appointed annually as Safeguarding Lead, atlending all relevant external fraining and
dissaminating information to fellow Trustees as appropriate.

One Trustee is appointed annually as Professional Development Lead, overseeing the training and
development opportunities offered to Trustees in line with the associated development plans. The role
holder ensures that Trustees are provided with opportunities to receive professional development in
accordanee with:

= thelr role and accountabllities as set out In the ESFA Academies Financial Handbook,

DIE Governance Handbeok and DIE Governance Competency Framewark
= the priorities outlined in the Trust's Strategic Business Plan
= individual Trustee self-evaluation using the DIE Governance Competency Framewaork

The Trust Board regularly consider the ragularity, propriety and value for money of all aspects of Trust
business, ineluding the actions and behaviours of the CEC / Accounting Officer, Executive leadership team
and local governing bodies, The Board recognises the enormous importance of securing Trustees with the
right knowledge and skills to carry out their role effectivaly.

A particular focus over the year has been in relation to governance and financial management following the
Financial Motice to Improve (FNtl) placed on the Trust in July 2017 by the Education, Skills and Funding
Agency (ESFA). This ralsed a number of Issues around financial probity and governance arrangements

within the Trust that required immediate remedial action,

As a direct result of the Financial Notice to Improve (FNtl), a full external review of Trust Governance and
Financial Management has been condueted in August 2017 by Bishep Fleming LLP. The Academies
Financial Handbook and associated documents were used to audit the Trust's compliance with regard to all
mattars of governance and financial management and to ensure all remedial actions were completed within
the ESFA prescribed timelines,

As part of the above review, a complate audit of Trustee skills and competencies was conducted in August
2017 against the Governance Competencles Framewark 2017, This resulted in the resignation of a number
of executive Trustees and the appointment of a majority non-executive Board, all of whom have the
required skill sets to ensure effective Trust governance. Two CPD Programmes have also baen established
for Trustees and Members — Programme 1 for newly appointed Trustees / Members and Programme 2 for
existing Trustees / Members, Phase 1 of these programmes has now been completed and the second
phase will take place betwean January and March 2018,

The outcomes of both reviews, alongside the specific issues raisad in the FNtl form the basis of the Trust's
FNil Rapid Action Plan, Agreed next step action points are as follows:

Financial Managemant:

=+ Complete OJEU Tender for Financial Services contract to be In place by 1" March 2018

«  Trust High Interest account to be in place in line with Trust Investment Policy by 1% January 2018

=  Work towards greater economy and efficlency through centralisation of ldentified functions

= Review Scheme of Delegation for individual Trust School's in relation to Financial Accountabilities
of LGB'S

= Ensure School Business Managers recelve further tralning and support to understand their role
within a growing Multi Academy Trust

=  Conduct full review of efficiency and impact of Pupil Premium spend across Trust Schools

= Conduct full review of efficlency and Impact of Sports Premium spend across Trust Schools

= Commission short follow up Financial Management Review from Bishop Fleming LLF for April
2018
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

Governance:

Embedding Accountability Framework across Trust Schools at away days planned for January
2018

Completing work on 'Case for Change' looking at the role and accountabilities of LGB's going
forwards. Particular attention to Schemes of Delegation, role of LGB Chair, financial accountability,
school standards and narrewing achlevement gaps

All Trustees to be subscribed to the Key for School Governors

All Trustees to recelve Employment Law training in addition to current Training Programme

Leadership:

Since recelving the Financial Notice to Improve, the Trust has introduced the Accountability Performance
Framework to support schools and the Trust Board to monitor and evaluate progress and performance
across ten key operating areas

Valuos Laarning Tanching Analyais
drls Ignila
Parlarmancs
Pragrass it AMAT Ofatad
Lendership Governance Budgat Complinnce

These cover the core accountabliities of Trust performance in relation to;

Governance

Financial Management

Standards of School Improvement

Statutory, regulatory and mandatory compliance
The managament of risk

A recent evaluation submitted to the ESFA demonstrates that the Trust has made significant progress in
relation to addressing the specific issues raised In the Financial Notice to improve,

Organisational structure

The Trust Board has 4 main sub-committees, appointing Trustees and executive leaders to serve on each
committee annually. The committees for the period of the Report are;

Finanee

Risk and Audit

Achlevemeant Support and Serutiny
Local Improvement Board

Two further Committees for Remuneration and Memination and Disciplinary / Appeals are formed from
Trustees when required and subject to Trustee availability,
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

Organisational structure (continued)

The Trust's Local Improvement Board structure, with both Trustee and executive leadership members,
overseas the progress and performance of all schools with a particular focus on those schools eausing
concern using the DIE Schools Causing Concern Guidance,

All sub-committees have formal terms of reference which define the purpose and structure of the
committee, clearly outlining its objectives, scope and accountability, For example, the terms of reference for
the Finance, Committee, include the preparation, monitoering and management of the Trust's budgat and
implementation of the Trust's financial managament policies and associated processes Including risk
assessment / mitigation.

These are set out in the Corporate Governance Charter and Scheme of Delegation that can be viewed on
the Trust's website.

The Trust Board has a full-time CEO and Accounting Officer who is clear of the responsibilities of the
Accounting Officer to the Secretary of State as set out in the Academles Financlal Handbook 2017,

Dacisions relating to the regularity, propriety and value for money of all aspects of Trust business are
reserved for the Finance Sub-Committee and full Trust Beard, The assoclated levels of delegated
responsibility to the CED, Executive Leadership Team, Headleachers and Local Governing Bodies are
outlingd in the Trust's Scheme of Delegation and Governance Charter.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Over the reporting year the Trust has developed an employed infrastructure in response to growth
and also the requirements of the Financial Notice to Improve (FN1I). The following appointments have
been made to ensure the effective delivery of all aspects of Trust business;

CEO / Acecounting Officer FTE Appointed 1/8/17
Chief Financial Officer FTE Appointed 1/8/17
Academies Lead 0.4 FTE Appolinted to Mareh
Business and Operations Manager FTE Appointed 1/8/17
Capital and Assets Manager FTE Appointed 1/8/17
Administration Support Officer (vacant)

As part of this appointment process, full use was made of the DIE information for academy trusts on
financial benchmarking and value for meney to ensure the Board used all available resource efficiently,
benchmarking executive team salaries to those paid in similar trusts as a basis for transparency, scrutiny
and challenge.

The fallowing value for money criteria were used by Trustees:

« economic, efficient and effective use of all the resources in their charge
= the avoidance of waste and extravagance

« the prudent and economical administration of the organisation

s the establishment and maintenance of a system of financial governance
= aensuring all financial transactions reprasent value for money
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)

Related parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Following receipt of the ESFA Financial Notice to Improve all issues of related parties with the drb Group
have been examined, Connected party issues have now been fully resolved and new arrangements and
appoiniments nolified to both the ESFA and DfE in line with the requirements of the Notiee and in full
compliance with the Academies Financial Handbook.

Until a full ©JEU Tendering process can be completed, the Trust has engaged the services of drb Sehools
and Academies Services Lid to provide financial management services to Trust schools to March 2018,
This work Is undertaken based on a clearly defined Service Level Agreement and the services are provided
‘at cost’ and 'open book',

There are no other related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and
operations of the drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust.

Objectives and activities
Objects and alms
One key aim

The one aim of the drb Ignite Multi Academy is to ensure that all pupils achieve the highest standard
of educational outcomes regardless of circumstance or background by:

developing clear objectives focused on improving teaching
setting clear expectations and targets for school improvement
embedding shared values for educational achievement
working with the Severn Teaching School Alliance

knowing all schools well

Objectives, strategles and activities

To support this aim, the main objectives, strategies and activities of the Trust over the reporting year
are set out in the Trust's Annual Business Plan,

The main objectives for the period are;

1. Workstrand 1: Pupil progress and achievement:

to continually improve children's progress and standards by openly sharing knowledge and
learning between schools and building the capacity of staff.

2. Workstrand 2: Trust operations and governance:

to continue to develop accountability framework and associated systems, structures and
processes to support our one aim and manage any risks safely.

3. Workstrand 3: Financial stewardship:

to improve and refine financial systems to make sure they are fit for purpose, efficient and
keep the Trust and its schools safe whilst providing value for money.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

4,

Workstrand 4: School leadership and professional development:

to further develop an outward facing leadership and professional development strategy. The
aim being to make the Trust an exciting place to work, attracting high calibre staff and

recognising and rewarding outstanding teaching.
Workstrand 5: Growth for sustainability:

to actively seek out schools that share the Trust's vision and values to join the Trust. Also, to
be clear about the Trust's purpose in all marketing materials and advocacy.

Significant strategies and activities linked to achievement of the Trust's Business Plan
priorities over the reporting year have been:

expansion from four to eight schools from 1 Navember 2016 representing significant growth and
securing greater financial viability

appointment of external school improvement adviser to challenge and support schoaols alongside
partnership arrangements with the Severn Teaching School Alliance, Telford

common approach to praparation and submission of CIF applications leading to 6 successful bids
with the eombined financial value of £744 464

Development of a robust Governance Charter In response to the external Governance and
Financial Management Audits conducted by Bishap Fleming LLP

development of a Trustee CPD Programme linked to major accountabilities e, finance,
governance, and school improvement

MNewly Qualified Teacher Programme and Programme for teachers in second year of teaching
(RQT)

Implementation of common Pupil Progress Tracking System (SPTO) centrally and within each
Trust school

REAP Programme to support childran with social, emotional and behavioural challenges
International Erasmus Programme through British Councll making links with schools in Finland and
Spain

Shared School CPD opportunities and moderation processes

Establishment of Trust Safeguarding Plan and Children's Safeguarding Boards in all schoola
Teacher enquiry research project for Early Years looking at the impact of self-regulation on
children’s learning outcomes (particular focus on removing barriers to learning for children facing
disadvantage)

Public benefit

The Trust I8 mindful of the guldance on Public Benefit izsued by the Charity Commigsion, and the
requirements to comply with current legalisation, The Trust will continue to provide education to children

that:

is balanced and broadly based

provides the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical development of all pupils
prepares pupils for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life

promotes, sustains and increases individual and collective knowledge and understanding of
learning, molivation and wellbaing

supports parents and the heme learning envirenment

In setting Trust development priorities, planning associated activities and evaluating the Trust's Business
Plan, Trustees give full consideration to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefi,

Equal Opportunities

The Trust is an equal opportunity employer, and strives to give full and fair consideration to all applicants
for employment, training and promotions, Irrespective of dizabllity, gender, race, colour or sexual
orientation.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance
Highlights for the year:

Introduction of SPTO Pupil Progress Tracking System across Trust
Intraduction of SIMS financial management system across Trust
Development of cross Trust Moderation Programme for K51 and KS2
Development of NQT Induction Programme

Development of RQT Programme

Critical improvement priarities

Establishment of Trustees CPD Frogramme
Establishment of early years research group

= % of children achleving age related expectations at K51 and K52

= conslistency of teaching quality within and across schools

= % of children entering K51 ‘school ready’

Overall School Performance Table

Name of Ofstad Date last Date of last external | Latest
school category inspection performance performance
overall review review
Judgement position

Jervoise Primary E>

School Good February 2014 October 2017

Wychall  Primary

School Good June 2013 October 2017

Bromley Pensnett Requires *

Primary School improvement | January 2014 September 2017

Beachwood C of E Special HMI visit

Primary School Measures September 2015 September 2017 "
‘Princethorpe  Infant |

School Good November 2013 July 2017 l:>

Audley Primary

School Good December 2014 | June 2017 A
The Oval Primary

School Good June 2013 March 2017 "‘

Hob Green Primary

School Good September 2013 September 2017
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

Key Performance Data 2017

Key Stage 2 Audlay Beach Bromloy | Hob Jorvaise | Prince The Oval | Wychall Natlonal
2017 (18) wood Greon thorpe 2017
{2016)
Reading 63 (47) | 25(45) | 63 (8B1) |48(38) |71(61) | N/A 76 (48) | 41 (B5) | 71 (66)
Writing 71(76) |62 (58) | 63(67) | 86(76) |84 (84) 69 (66) |69 (67) |76 (74)
Maths 67 (61) | 38(35) | 57 (67) | 76 (59) | 87 (68) 81 (53) | 49(45) | 75(70)
SPAG G609 (68) | 5O (45) | 653 (78) | 76(44) | 87 (B1) 81(61) | 81(77) | 77(72)
Combined 64 (37) | 26(25) | 37(57) | TBC G8 (48) 63 (37) | 33(33) | 61(53)
Key Stage 1 Audloy Booch Bromley | Hob Jervoise | Prince The Oval | Wychall | National
wood Groen thorpe 2017
{2018)
Reading 68 (61) | 54(26) |74(63) | 75(87) |80(81) |76(70) | 71(68) | 77 (B5) | 76 (75)
Writing 38(64) | 52(26) |B3(63) |71(8B3) [74(81) | 70(60) |62(52) |75(57) |68 (65)
Maths 58(68) | 5B8(34) |72(63) | 90(79) |84(81) |83(50) | 72(62) | 82(53) | 75(73)
Phonics
Year 1 79(71) [ 71(71) | 78(78) |B2(79) |76(76) | 55(70) | 76(85) | 70(70) | &1 (81)
Year 2 78 (64) 92 (85) | 89 (85)
Reception
GLD 56(55) | 60(69) |65(63) |60(43) |66(67) |57(37) |64(64) |72(60) | 71(69)

Financial key performance indicators:

« Direct costs as a percentage of fotal costs were 64.5% (2016 : 61.7%)

= Support costs as a percentage of total costs were 35,5% (2016 : 36.6%)

= Total payroll costs as a percentage of recurring income ware 75.4% (2016 : 67.6%)
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)

Going concern

After making appropriate enguiries, the board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that theMulti
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial stalements, Further
details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Paolicies,

Financial Review

The financial results of drb Ignite Multi Academy are detailed in the following pages. It is considéred that
the finances are sound and well established, The principal financlal management policies adopted are laid
down by the Finance Handbook for Academies published by the ESFA and requirements as laid down by
the Multl Academy's Financial Handbook.

The principal funding source is grant income from the ESFA. All expenditure of this grant income Iz
planned to fulfil the objectives and strategies of the Multi Academy.

During the year ended 31 August 2017 total resources expended were £19,770,207 and the surplus of
income ovaer expenditure was £14,170,810 which included depreciation of £5880,100,

Reserves Policy

The Trustees continually monitor the reserves of the charitable company. This process encompasses the
nature of income and expenditure streams and the need to match eommitments with Income and nature of
rasarvas.

It is the board of Trustees' general policy to continue to bulld reserves which can be used for future
educational purposes.

The multi academy had total funds at 31 August 2017 of £26,874,183 which included £5,128 restricted
funds not available for general purposes of the multi academy trust, £2,311,910 of free reserves defined as
unrestricted funds available for general purposes and £37.918,136 which can only be realised by the
disposal of tangible fixed assets.

The balance on restricted genaeral funds (excluding pension reserve) plus the balance on unrestricted funds
wiais a surplus of E2,317,047,

In addition, the deficit on the restricled pension fund of £13,361,000 arises from an actuarial deficit on the
local governmant pension scheme which will be dealt with as advised by the actuary,

investment Policy

The Board continually monitor the reserves of the Company, This process encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams and the need to match commitmants with income and nature of reserves.
The day to day responsibility for managing this function is delegated to the Chief Financial Officer.

It is the Board's alm to continue to build reserves which will be used for future school improvement and
related educational purposes through implementation of an investments policy.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)

Princlpal Risks and Uncertaintios

The Trust Board has assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those ralating to
governance, financial management and school improvement using the Government's Orange Book. The
Board has reviewed systems to assess the risks thal schools face, especially in key operational areas
ineluding:

teaching and learning

leadership and management
financial probity and internal controls
related party and contentious lssues
Trust governance

health and safety

The principal financial risk facing the Trust geing forwards relates 1o the conditions imposed by the ESFA
Financial Notice to Improve, This restricts the Trust from ‘on boarding’ Interested schools until the ESFA
Naotice is formally lifted. Without further growth over the coming financial year 2017/18, the Trust's deficit
position is projected fo increase to £111,274 by August 2018.

The Trust’s future funding is alse dependent upon Govarnment policy priorities for education. The impact
on the Trust of any raview of Schools' Funding, will be assessed accordingly.

The Local Government Penslon Scheme, a defined benefit scheme, is currently in deficlt. The en-geing

contributions required, determined following a recent actuarial valuation, are considered to be manageable
and within the Trust's budget,

Auditor
Insofar as tha Truslees are aware:
= there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware: and

= the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit infarmation and Lo establish that the auditor is aware of that Infermation

Trustees' report, incorporaling a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 44,7 84.¢<su. (i, 2017 and signed on the board's behalf by:

fad 7
’*’(—‘“—"‘ Richard Martin - Chair
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement
Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that drb Ignite Multi Academy has
an offective and appropriate system of contral, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achleve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and nol absolute assurance against material misstalement or loss,

The Trust Board has delegated day-to-day responsibility for the running of the Trust to the Chief Executive
Officer / Accounting Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), as
Accounting Officer, has full responsibility for ensuring financial contrals conform with the requirements of
both propriety and good financial management as set out in the Academies Financial Handbook and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibllities assigned te the role in the funding agreement
belween drb Ignite Mulli Academy and the Secretary of State for Education, The Accounting Officer also
has responsibility for reporting to the Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The infermation on governance Included here supplements that described in the Director's Report and in
the statement of Direclor's Responsibilities. The revised Trust Board, established following the Financial
Notice to Improve, has formally met twice during the reporting period. Attendance during this period at
meeatings of the Trust Board was as follows:

Meatings Outofa
Trustee attended possibie
Richard Martin (Chairman) 2 2
Kavin McCabe (executive) 2 2
Viv Randall (non executve) 2 2
Cheryl Millard (non executve) 1 2
lan Swain {non executve) 2 2
Catherine Gallagher (non executve) 2 2
David Sheldon {(non execulve) 2 2
Woaorcester Diocesan Academies Trust (non executve) 2 2
Linda Jones (non executve) 1 2

The full Review of Governance and Financial Management undertaken in response to the Financial Notice
to Improve in August 2017 highlighted the following areas for immediate action. A rapld Action Plan has
been produced, submilted and approved by the ESFA within the prescribed deadlines set out in the
Financial Notice to Improve:

= establish majority non-executive board, including revised sub-committee structure with clear lines of
accountabilily to the main board

= recruit non-executive directors with specific business and HR experience and competencies

= consider support for the Board in terms of formal clerking arrangements for meelings and preparation
of agenda

= appoint internal executive leadership team and full-time CEO / Accounting Officar

= remove all related party concerns

Eubsﬂquant to this the following actions have been taken:
Board fully reconstituted with revised sub-committee structure established. TOR agreed by Board
= malorty new non-executive Directors appolnted
= agreement by Board to appoint internal employed Infrastructure including full time CEO / Accounting
Officer
= full review of Trust's Risk Management processes and register
= further fallow up review of gavernanee and financial management planned for early 2018

The Trust intends to conduct its next external review, using Bishop Fleming LLP in Spring 2018 following a

full review of the Business Plan and associated risks scheduled for 16 and 17 January 2018, This will
ansure the Trust Board is fit for purpose to over-see and achieve the agreed improvement priorities.

Page 13



drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement (continued)

The Finance Sub-Committee is a sub-committee of the main Trust Board. Its TOR and membaership
were fully reviewed following the Financial Notice to Improve (July 2017). Its key accountabilities are:

¢« To consider each schools’ indicative funding, notified annually by the DfE and to assess its
implications, in consultation with HTs, LGBs, the CEO and the CFO, in advance of the financial
year, drawing any matters of significance or concarn to the attention of the Board

« To consider and recommend acceptance / non-acceptance of the Trust's budget, at the start of
each financial year

= To contribute to the formulation of each Schools' Development Plan, through the consideration of
financial priorities and proposals, in consultation with the CEO, the CFO, LGBs and HTs, with the
stated and agreed aims and objectives of the Trust

« Toreceive and make recommendations on the broad budget headings and areas of expenditure to
be adopted each year, including the level and use of any contingency fund or balances, ensuring
the compatibility of all such proposals with the development priorities set out in the development
plan

+ To liaise with and receive raports from LGBs and to make recommendations to LGBs about the
financial aspects of matters being considered by them

«  Tomonitor and review income and expenditure on a regular basis and ensure compliance with the
overall financial plan for the Trust, and with the Academies Financial Handbook, drawing any
matters of concern to the attention of the Board

« To monitor and review procedures for ensuring the effective implementation and operation of
financial procedures, on a regular basis, including the implementation of bank account
arrangemeants and, where appropriate to make recommendations far improvement

= Toreceive the financial statement to form part of the Annual Report of the Trust for filing in
accordance with Companies Act requirements

= Toreview the Trust's internal and external financial statements and reports to ensure that they
reflect best practice

= To approve the drawing up of a Building Development Programme and Asset Management Plan,
including application for capital grants

« Tooversee the Trust's risk management procedures and associated Risk Register

« Toachieve and secura value for money through effective procurement procedures and financial

benchmarking
Meetings Outofa
Membership following Review attended possible
lan Swain — Chair (appointed August 2017) 2 2
David Sheldon (appointad August 2017) 2 2
Richard Martin (appointad August 2017) 2 2
Rob Bowater = CEO (appointad August 2017) 2 2
Chris Finnerty = CFO (appointed August 2017) 2 2

The Standards and Safeguarding Committee is a sub-committee of the main Trust Board. Its main
responsibilities are to oversee;

Curriculum and Quality:

= The school's statutory requirements in relation to the curriculum offer and other curriculum issues
such as spiritual, moral, social, and cultural learning

The educational needs of the pupils attending Trust schools

Trust policies in relation to its Curriculum Statement

Tha overall quality of teaching

Provision of extra-curricular activity

Usea of Pupil Pramium and Sports Preamium
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement (continued)

Performance and Standards:

= The monitoring and review of the achievement of strategic objectives, in particular the overview of
performance against quantitative and qualitative benchmarks for key indicators / outcomes and the
Ofsted framework, providing challenge and recommending remedial actions where required in line
with the Trust Business Plan

= The monitoring and review of the measures covered in the Rapid Action Plans (RAPs) for sponsored
schools and in line with Local Improvement Board (LIB) termly procedures

Self-Assesament and Review:

« Information on curriculum and quality issues for all the Trust's schools through the use of a 4AMAT
Performance Canvas for each school

* Progress reports on the implemantation of post-Ofsted action plans and any other formal evaluation
reports related to the quality and achievement of learning across the Trust, to further inform and
develop the Trust's Quality Improvement Plans, Rapid Action Plans and strategies

= Review of outcomes, identifying significant changes in performance, emerging trends and risks in
relation to the future performance of each school

Meetings Out of a

Membership attended possible
Richard Martin (appointad Septamber 2016) 3 3
Kevin McCabe (appointed September 2016) 3 3
Viv Randall (appointed September 2016) 2 3
Sue Egersdorff (appointed September 2018) 3 3

Review of value for money

The purpose of this section is to demonstrate to all stakeholders that the Trust's use of public assets has
supported value for money during the year. A key Trust objective Is to achleve value for money not only for the
organisation but for the taxpayer more generally, The intention of Directors is to continuously improve both the
educational and wider societal outeomes for all pupils within the resources available.

The Accounting Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources recelved,

The Accounting Officer has considered how the Trust's use of resources has provided good value for money
over the Reporting period and reports to the board of Directors where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the Multi Academy Trust
has worked to deliver improved value for money during the period and provides the following three examples:

= Procurement of shared finaneial reporting system = this enables individual school financial data to
be systematically monitored and a complete MAT averview maintained

= Procurement of SPTO Pupil Progress Tracking system - this provides ‘real time' comprehensive
school performance and progress data for each MAT school. It allows for the effective sharing of data,
moderation of progress measures and effective benchmarking

= Development of cross Trust AMAT Performance Canvas - thiz acts as the key Accountability
Framework for the Trust. It allows for the portrayal of holistic performance, trajectory, risk and
mitigation using a simple compliance system
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement (continued)
Review of value for money (continued)
Areas of future focus for 2017 include:

=  Embedding use of the SPTO Pupil Progress Tracking System to deliver effective formative and
summative reports to Senior Leaders and Directors

= Embedding use of the Trust's Accountability Framework and performance canvas across all
schools

=  Considering the potential to achieve improved vaiue for money through shared purchasing and
procurement approaches
Pupil Pramium Review

. Truataia and Local Governance training following review of local governance capacity and
capability

=  Focus on the achlevement of disadvantaged pupils

= Improvement in the teaching of mathematics and english across all Trust schoaols,

=  School readiness

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The Trust's Accountability Framework and associated systems of internal control are designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve pelicies, aims and objectives.
They can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The systems of
internal contral are based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the riska to the
achievement of the Multi Academy's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically, The Accountability Framewaork and systems of internal control have been developing over the
period to 31 October 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements,
They have also been externally reviewed through a full Financial Management Audit conducted by Bishop
Fleming LLP in August 2017,

Capacity to handle risk

The Trust Board has reviewed the key risks to which the Multl Academy Trust |2 exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks, The Board
is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Multi
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the perlod te 31 October 2017 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and financial statements, This process is regularly reviewed by the
Trust Board and has been fully externally reviewed by Bishop Fleming LLP in response to the ESFA
Financial Notice to Improve (July 2017).

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountabillity In line with the Academies Financlal Handbaok,

It includes:
=  compréehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Trust Board
= regular reviews by the Finance, Risk and Audit Sub-Commiltees of reporis which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes
setling targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
delegation of autharity and segregation of duties
identification and management of fisks
delegation of authority and segregation of duties
identification and management of risks
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement (continued)

The board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific Internal audit function to provide an
indepandent oversight of the Trust's affairs, The Trust has appointed Bishop Fleming LLP o undertake this
role,

The main duties of the internal audit function are to provide the Trust with on-going independent assurance
that:

= Compliance: review and assessment of how the Trust Is addressing Annex 'C' MUSTS as per the
AFH, of the Fraud Policy and atlitude to fraud, and how the Trust is addressing the Charity
Commission CCB chacklist;

= Stralegic: review and Assessment of the Business Continuity Plan and Risk Regisler, new finance
leases or loans, segregation of duties and schame of delegation, succession planning, compliance
visit reports and progress against recommendations, budgets, management accounts and reporting
process and Board minutes;

= Governance: progress against prior year Managemeni Letter and prior period Internal Assurance
Report, ensure website up to date and Includes all relevant documents, ensure proper convening of
Board Meetings and that they are quorate, ensure appointments / resignations of Trustees are
updated on Companies House and Edubase, assessment of the related / connected party policy
and ensuring all declaralions of interest are recaelved and a register of inlerests updated; and

¢ Transactional: tesling over purchases, bank, credit cards, capital works, tendering, payrell,
income, and IT proceduras

On a termly basis, the Bishop Fleming LLF Internal Audit Funelion reporis are presented to the board of
Truslees, through the finance sub-committee on the operation of the systems of conirel and on the
discharge of the board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities.

Raview of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, Robert Bowater (the Chief Executive Officer), has responsibliity for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the peried in question the review has been informed

by:
s the work of the internal reviewer
e the work of the external auditor

* the work of the executive managers within the Mulli Academy Trust who have responaibility for the
development and malintenance of the internal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place,

___.-‘P' . .. _.-“';d s
K TR s

Richard Martin Robert Bowater
Chair Aceounting Officer
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As Accounting Officer of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Board
of Trustees and the Education Skills and Funding Agency (ESFA) of malerlal irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the
Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Financial Notice to Improve (FNII) imposed on the Trust in July 2017, the Academies
Financial Handbook 2017 and the Governance Handbook 2017,

As a direcl result of the Financial Notice to Improve (FNtI), a full external review of Trust Governance and
Financial Management has been conducted in August 2017 by Bishop Fleming LLP. The Academies Financial
Handbook and associated documents were used to audit the Trust's compliance with regard to all matters of
governance and financial management and to ensure all remedial actions were complated within the ESFA
prescribed timelines,

I confirm that | and the Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by
the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Multi Academy Trust's
funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2017.

I confirm that no instancas of material irregularity, impropriely or funding non-compliance have been discoverad
to date. If any instances are Identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
Trustees and the EGFA,

Robert Bowater — Aceounting Officer
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who acl as governors of drb Ignite Mulli Academy Trust and are also the Directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report
and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction published by the Education
and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the Trustess to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the Trusiees must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the siate of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application
of resources, including its income and expenditure for thal period. In preparing these financial statemants,
the trustees are required to:

= select suitable aceounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles In the Charities SORP 2015 and (he Academies Accounts
Direction 2016 to 2017,

= make judgemeants and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

=  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (FRS 102) have bean followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial atatements; and

=  prepare tha financial statemenis on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charltable company will centinue in business

The Trustess are rasponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable aceuracy al any time the
financial position of the charitable company and anable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the pravention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Truslees are responsible for ensuring thal in ils conducl and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of geod financial
management, They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DIE have been
applied for the purposes intended,

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financlal infoermation
included on the charitable eompany's website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on ‘:‘Jh”ﬂf ,‘r:.‘.*?‘:"?,‘%,': ,,,,, 2017 and signed
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust

Opinlen

We have audited tha financial statements of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust for the periad ended 31 August 2017
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied In thelr preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, the Charlities SORP 2015 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 Issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,

This report is made solely to the Mulli Academy frust's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2008, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Multi Academy trust's
membera those matters we ara required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullast extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Multi Acadamy
trust and the Multi Academy trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this raport, or for the opinions wa have
formed,

In our opinion the financlal statements

* glve a true and fair view of the state of the Multi Academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2017, and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the period then
ended;

*  have been properly prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charltles SORP
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 lssued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law,
Our responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's responsibllities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our repert, We are Independent of the Multl Academy trust in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We balieve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Coneclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:
the frustees’ use of the going concern basls of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or
the trustees have not disclosad In the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast

significant doubt about the Multi Academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised

for issue,
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of drb Ignite Multi
Academy Trust

(continued)

Other Information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the information included in
the trustees’ annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financlal statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing 8o, consider whether the other Information is materially inconsistent with the financlal statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information, If, based on the work we
have performed, wa conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undartaken in the course of the audit:

+  the information given in the trustees’ report (incorperating the stratagic report and the directors’ report) for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Multi Academy trust and its environment obtained In the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not bean kept, or
+  the financlal statements are not in agreement with the accounting récords and returns; or
s certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received all the Information and explanations we require for our audit,
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of drb Ignite Multi
Academy Trust
(continued)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained mere fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement (set out on page 19), the trustees (who are also the
directors of the Multl Academy trust for the purpeses of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
migstatament, whether due to fraud or arror,

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the Mulli Academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using tha going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the Multi Academy trust or 1o cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 15Aa (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered materlal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
esoonomic decislons of users taken on the basls of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and malntaln professional
scepticiam throughout the audit, We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from arror, as fraud may Invelve collusion, forgery,
intentional emissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Multl Academy trust's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the frustees

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Multi Academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conelude that
a materlal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer's report to the related
disclosures in the financlal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to maodify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future
events or conditions may cause the Multl Academy trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of drb Ignite Multi
Academy Trust

(continued)

Auditor's responsgibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transaclions and events in a manner that
achievas falr presentation.

We communlcate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficlencles in Internal control that we
identilfy during our audit,

O el s

David W Farnsworth FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behall of Feltons, Statulory Auditor

B Sovereign Courl

8 Graham Street

Birmingham B1 3JR

20 December 2017
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to drb Ignite Multi Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 June 2016 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as Included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by the drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them,

This report is made solely to drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust and the ESFA In accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to DRB Ignite Multi Academy Trust and
the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpese, Ta the fullest extent permittad
by law, we do not accept or assume responalbllity to anyone other than DRE Ignite Multi Academy Trust and the
ESFA, for our wark, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer Is responsible, under the requirements of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 25 September 2015 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant
from 1 Saptember 2016, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.,

Our responsibilities for this engagemant are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obialn limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagemant letter and the requirements of the
Acadamles Accounts Direction 2018 to 2017. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during
the year 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

Wae conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagemant letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity,

A limitad assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Multi Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes :
= Consideration of the applicable legislation and the multi academy frust's funding agreament
= Review and evaluation of the Multi Academy Trust's system of Internal controls
+  Examination and assessment of the Accounting Officer's statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance
«  Examination, on a test basis, of third party evidence supporting income and expenditure
= Review of exceptional and unusual items
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to drb Ignite Multi Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

During the year ESFA vislted the trust and subsagquantly issued a Financial Notice to Improve (FNi). This required
the trust to address certain breaches of governance and financial management procedures, The requirements of the
FNtl included an independent review of these procedures and this was carried out by Bishop Fleming LLP. The
review was completed within deadlines agreed by ESFA and remedial actions have been put In place to deal with
any sharteomings some of which had already been addressed aftar the FNtl was issuad.

With the exception of the above, in the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in
all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 Seplember 2016 to 31 August
2017 has not been applied to purposes intended by parliament and the financial iransactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them,

Uell oy

-

David W Farnsworth FCA (Reporting Accountant)
Far and on behall of Fellons, Statutory Auditor

8 Sovereign Court

8 Graham Slreel

Birmingham B1 3JR

20 December 2017

Page 256



drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financial activities for the year ended 31 August 2017
(Inciuding income and expenditure account)

Resatricted  Rostricted  Rostrictod

Unrostrioted  pension general  fixed asset Total 11 manths to
funds fund funds funds 2017 31/8/16
Notas £ E £ £ E £

Incama frem ;
Donations and capital grants 2 5,486 - - 811,000 817,480 394,238
Transler from local authority on
conversion 3 1,566,828  (7,704,000) - 21525424 15377363 14,345,840
Funding for the acadamy trust's
aducational operations 4 572,703 - 17,171,800 - 17,744,603 6,473,627
Other activities & - - . - - 3626
Investmanis G 1,676 - B x 1,875 826
Total 2,136,793 (7,704,000) 17,171,900 22336424 33,841,117 20,218,158
Expenditure an |
Charitable activities:

Academy trust's educational 7.8 420,288 830,000 17,530,818 880,100 19,770,207 5,547 798

operations
Other costs on conversion - - - - - 96,1564
Taotal 420,288 838,000 17,530,819 980,100 16,770,207 5,643 883
Net incomae/(sxpenditurs) batore 1716505 (8,543,000) (358,019) 21,358,324 14,170910 14,674,273
transfors
Transfors botween funds 16 (408, 748) - 164,999 243,747 = s
Net Incomel{expenditure) after 1,307,750 (8,543,000) (193,920) 21,800,071 14170910 14,674273
transfors
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(lossas) on definad
banafit pansion schamos 16, 25 . 60,000 - = 60,000  (1,931,000)
Net movement in fundsa 1,307,750 (8,483,000) (183,820) 21,600,071 14230810 12,643,273
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds braught forward 16 1,004,160 (4,878,000) 198,048 16,318,085 12,643,273
Total funds carried forward 2,311,819 (13,361,000) 5,128 37918138 26874183 12,643,273

All of the Academy's activities were derived from acquisitions during the current and comparative year.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Cempany number : 09284055
Balance sheet as at 31 August 2017

Fixed assets
Tangible assats

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabllities
Creditors; amounts falling
due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Croditors: amounts falling
due after mare than one year

Net assets excluding pension liabillty
Definad benafit pansion schama llability

Total net aesets

Funda of the academy trust :

Reatricted funds
Fixad asset fund
Genaral fund
Penslon reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrastricted Income funds

Total funds

Notes

13

14

15(a)

15(b)

25

16
16
16

16

2017 2016
£ £ £ £
37,635,087 16,244,734
1,083,245 650,437
2,821,474 1,339,582
3,884,718 1,880,019
1,280,326 666,078
2,624,393 1,301,941
40,259,480 17,546, 675
(24,287) (25.402)
40,235,183 17,521,273
(13,381,000 (4,878,000)
28,874,183 12,643,273
37,016,136 16,318,065
5,128 196,048
{13,361,000) (4,678,000)
24,582,264 11,838,112
2,311,978 1,004,160
26,874,183 12,643,273

g gyl
The financial statements on pages 26 to 53 ware approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 5. {'\!M-‘wf-'-t" .

2017 and are signed on their behall by:

Richard Martin - Chair
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 August 2017

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 20
Cash transferred on conversion to academy trust
Cash flows from investing activitiea 21
Cash flows from financing activities 22
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2016
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2017 23
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2017 2016
£ £
(40,579) 401,448
1,555,929 967,442
(32,353) (28,203)
(1,105) (1,105)
1,481,892 1,339,582
1,339,582
2,821,474 1,339,582




drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017

1. Statement of accounting policies

A summary of the prineipal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the multi academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financlal Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practica applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academias Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006,

drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern s appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to avents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern, The trustaes make this assessment in respect of a year of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for lssue of the financial statements and have concluded that the multi academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and thére are no
material uncertainties about the multi academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the mulli academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

= Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activitles on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the year is shown In the relevant funds
on the balance sheet. Where income is recelved in advance of meeting any performance-related
conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and
included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are mat. Where
antitternent eceurs before income is received, the Income Is acorued,

General Annual Grant |s recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an uneonditional entittement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised whean thare is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they
are expended.

. Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the racelpt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1. Statement of aceounting pelicies (continued)

Incoma (continued)

= Other Incomae
Other Incoma, including the hire of facliities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the multi academy trust has provided the goods or services.

+  Donated goods, facilities and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. Upen sale the fair value of the goods Is charged against, and the proceeds are
racognised as, ‘Income from other trading actlivities'.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless It is impractical to measure
this rellably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used, The gain is recognised as
income from denations and a corresponding ameunt is Included in the appropriate fixed asset category
and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the multi academy trust's accounting
policies,

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made
up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs invalved In undertaking each activity.
Diract costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute
to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned
betwean those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depraciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's usa,

+  Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the multi academy trust to raise funds for its charitable
purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

*+  Charitable activities

These are costs incurred en the multi academy trust's educational operations, including support costs
and costs relating to the governance of the multi acadamy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,
Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5600 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1, Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Where tangible fixad assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life, Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of
the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet, Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the
caost of each asset over Its expected useful life as follows:

Long leasehold buildings - straight line over 50 years
Fittinga and equipment - 15% siraight line
Computer hardware - 20 to 25% straight lina

Assets In the course of construction are included at cost. Dapraciation on these assets is not charged until
they are brought into use.

A review for Impairment of a fixed asset is carried out If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverabla. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixad assets
and their recoverable amounts are racognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statemant of Financial Activities.

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined by FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measuremant basis are as follows

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are dabt Inatruments measured
at amortised cost, Prepayments are not financlal instrumants,

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financlal Instrument and is measured at face value.
Financial linbilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financlal Instruments and are measured at
amortised cost, Taxation and social security are net included In the financial instruments disclosure definition,

Deferred Income is not deemed to be a financial liabllity, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Taxation

The multl academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meats the daflinition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes,

Accordingly, the multi academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
racelvad within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gaina Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

Penslon benefits

Retirement benefits to employesas of the multi academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pansion Scheme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit schames.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the multi academy trust in such a way that the pension cost Is a substantially
level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the
Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospactive unit cradit method, As stated in
note 25, the TPS is a mult-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined
benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and
the contributions recognised in the year to which thay ralate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the multi academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds, Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred, Net interést on the
net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and Interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the baginning of the year by the rate used to discount the
banafit obligations, The difference between the interest income on the scheme assats and the actual return on
the scheme assets is racognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Fund accounting

Unrastricted income funds represent resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the multi academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Rastrictad fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency or Dapartment for Education.

Critical aceounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The multl academy frust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions, The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions Include the discount rate, Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions llabllity at 31 August 2017, Any differences betwean the
figures derivad from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

2. Denatiens and capltal grants

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted genaral fixed asset Total 11 months to
funds fund funds 2017 31/8/16
£ £ £ £ £
Capital grants 811,000 811,000 364,175
Local authority funding = - . 19,203
Dther donations 6,486 = . 6,486 10,860
6,486 - £11,000 817,486 394,238
2016 total 10,860 383,378 394,238
3. Transfers from local autherity on convaralon
Restricted Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted penslon general fixed asset Total
funds funds fund funds 31/8/17
£ £ £ £ i
Fixed assets E - 21,525,424 21,525,424
Surplus on LA funds 1,540,274 = - 1,540,274
Other assels 15,655 - 15,655
LGPS pension (deflcit) - (7,704,000) - - (7,704,000)
1,555,929 (7,704,000) - 21,525,424 15,377,353
4. Funding for the multi academy trust's educational operations
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset Total 11 months to
funds fund funds 2017 31/8/16
£ £ £ £ £
DFE/ESFA grants
Genaral Annual Grant (GAG) - 13,543,203 13,543,203 3,939,967
Start up grants - . . 100,000
Othar DIE/ESFA grants . 2,336,784 2,336,784 676,672
. 15,879,987 15,879,987 4,716,639
Other government grants
Lacal autharity grants - 1,276,583 - 1,276,583 604,481
Other grants - 15,330 # 15,330 22,590
- 1,291,913 - 1,291,513 627,071
Other income from the academy
trust's educational operations 572,703 - 572,703 129,917
572,703 1,291,913 1,864,616 756,988
572,703 17,171,900 17,744,603 5,473,627
2018 total 129,917 5,343,710 5,473,627
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

5, Other activities

Unrestricted  Restricted Total 11 months to
funds funds 2017 31/8/16
£ E £ £
Hire of facllities - B 3,625
3,625
2016 total 3,625 3,625
6. Investment income
Unrestricted  Restricted Total 11 months to
funds funds 2017 31/8/16
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 1,875 - 1,875 826
2016 total B26 226
7. Expenditure
Staff Non pay expenditure Total 11 months to
costs Premises Other 2017 31/8/16
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational oparations
Direct costs 10,870,777 553,896 1,295,826 12,720,499 3,483,902
Allocated support costs 3,128,172 1,351,838 2,569,698 7,049,708 2,063,827
13,998,949 1,905,734 3,865,524 19,770,207 5,547,729
2016 total 3,966,933 619,854 960,942 5,547,729
Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes :
2017 2016
f £
Operating leases - plant and machinery 58,681 5,173
- othar 282 -
Depreclation 880,100 326,683
Interast paid on equal pay loan 676 635
Fees payable to auditor - audit 25,000 8,000
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

8. Charitable activities

Educational operations
Direct costs
Support costs

2016 total

Analysis of support costs
Support staff
Depreciation

Technology costs
Premises costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

2016 total

9. Staff

a) Stalf costs

Staff costs during the year wera:

Wages and salarles
Social sacurlty costs

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes

Apprentlicaship levy

Supply staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

Restricted Other
Unrestricted pension restricted Total 11 months to
funds fund funds 2017 31/8/16
£ £ 3 £ £
292,344 - 12,428,155 12,720,499 3,483,902
127,944 #30,000 6,082,764 7,049,708 2,063,827
420,288 839,000 18,510,919 19,770,207 5,547,729
87,510 154,000 5,266,219 5,547,729
- 839,000 2,289,172 3,128,172 964,853
- = 426,204 426,204 114,338
. - 23,875 23,875 13,786
19,073 - 991,041 1,010,114 293,171
108,871 - 2,323,771 2,432,642 660,596
E - 28,701 28,701 17,083
127,944 839,000 6,082,764 7,049,708 2,063,827
18,943 184,000 1,850,884 2,063,827
Total 11 months to
2017 31/8/16
£ £
9,389,806 2,840,730
846,980 222,176
2,678,270 694,455
8,424 -
12,923,480 3,757,361
1,075,469 205,112
E 4,460
13,998,949 3,966,933
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

9, Staff (continued)

Total 11 menths to
2017 31/8/16
£ £
Staff restructuring costs comprise |
Severance payments 4,460
4,460

b) Staff severance paymenis

Included in staff restructuring costs is a single non-statutory/non-contractual severance payment totalling Enil

(2016 : £4,460).

¢) Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during

the year was as follows: 2017 2016
Number Number
Teachers 218 100
Administration and support 1689 72
mManagament 2 2
390 174
d) Higher paid staff
2017 2016
Number Number
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension
costs) on an annuaised basls exceaded £60,000 was
£60,001 - £70,000 5 -
£70,001 - £80,000 1 1
£80,001 - E90,000 2 1
£090,001 - £100,000 1
£100,001 - £110,000 1

2) Kay management personnel

The key management personnel of the mulli academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pansion contributions)
recelved by key management parsonnel for their services to the multl academy trust was £239,709 (2016 :

£250,434)
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

10.

1.

Cantral services
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year :
Category Basis

Cantral support costs 4% - 5% of general annual grants

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows

2017 2016
£ £

Audliey Primary School 136,717 -
Beachwood Church of England Primary Scheol 61,941 10,358
Hob Green Primary School 55,337 .
Jervoise School 3a.ez7 36,298
Princethorpe Infant School 39,973 .
The Bromley-Pensnett Primary School 35,87 48,443
The Oval School 113,848 .
Wyehall Primary School 83,142 74,706

560,702 169,806

Related Party Transactiona - Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the
multi academy trust, The principal and other staff trustees only recelve remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows !

Therese Connell (headteacher and trustee from 01/10/2015 until 11/7/17)

Remuneration £90,000 - £95,000 (2016 : £75,000 - £80,000)

Employer's pension contributions paid £15,000 - £20,000 (2016 ; £10,000 - £15,000)
Kevin McCada (executive headtecher and trustee 01/10/2015)

Remunaration £100,000 - £105,000 (2016 ; £65,000 - £70,000)

Employer's pension contributions paid £10,000 - £15,000 (2016 : £10,000 - £15,000)

During the year ended 31 August 2017, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £4,826 (2016 : £5,183) were
reimbursed or pald directly to two (2016 : three) trustees. Other related party transactions involving the trustees
are set out In note 26
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

12. Trustees' and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omisslons occurring whilst on academy business. The
insurance provides cover up o £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2017
was £7,750 (2016 : £3,710). The cost of this insurance is included In the total insurance cost,

13. Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
Al 1 Seplember 2016

Transfer on conversion
Addilions

At 31 August 2017
Depreclation

Al 1 September 2016
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2017

MNet book values
At 31 August 2017

At 31 August 2016

Leasehold
land and Fittlngs and Computer
bulldings aequipment hardware Total
£ £ £ £
16,085,610 192,003 293,715 16,571,418
20,703,601 279,519 542,304 21,525,424
671,741 101,776 71,511 845,028
37,460,952 573,388 907,530 38,941,870
256,868 21,689 48,127 326,684
709,583 74,354 191,122 980,099
966,451 101,083 239,249 1,306,783
36,494,501 472,305 668,281 37,635,087
15,828,742 170,404 245,588 16,244,734

Leasehold properly was valued at 1 October 2015, 1 April 2016, 1 September 2016, 1 October 2016 and 1
November 2016 by The Valuation Office Agency — DVS and the fittings and equipment and computer hardware
were valued as at the same dates by the trustees. The basis on which the valuations were made was

depraciated replacemeant cost.

Cost or valuation at 31 August

2017 is represented by !

Valuation in 2016
Valuation in 2017
Cost

Leasehold

land and Fittings and  Computer

buildings equipment hardware Total

£ £ £ £

15,741,090 169,290 248,630 16,158,010
20,703,601 279,519 542,303 21525423

1,016,261 124,679 116,597 1,257,437
37,460,852 573,388 807 530 38,941,870
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

13. Tangible fixed assets (continued)

The trust's acquisitions relating to land and buildings included the taking up of the leaseholds on the following
schools;

- Audley Primary School, Audley Road, Birmingham B33 9HY

- Hob Green Primary School, 21 Hob Green Road, Stourbridge DY9 9EX
- Princethorpe Infant School, Princethorpa Road, Birmingham B29 5QB
- The Oval School, Whiltington Oval, Birmingham B33 8JG

All leaseholds are for a pepparcorn rent over a term of 125 years.

i4. Debtora
Total 11 months to
2017 31/8/16
£ £
Debtors from operations 5,572 .
VAT recovarabla 276,156 144,292
Prepayments and accrued income 779,547 468,343
Other debtors 1,970 37,802
1,063,245 650,437
15. Creditors
Total 11 months to
2017 31/8/16
£ £
{(a) Amounts falling due within one year :
Craditors from operations 233,61 510,252
Other taxation and soclal security 54,586 30,0580
Aceruals and deferred income 827,278 100,175
Other creditors 144,851 47,601

1,260,326 688,078

Deferred income

Dafarred income al 1 September 2016 63,022 .
Resources deferred In the year 301,957 53,022
Amounts released from previous years (53,022) 3
Deferred income at 31 August 2017 301,857 53,022

At the balance sheet date the multi academy trust was holding funds received in advance from the ESFA
for universal free school meals, CIF capital grant funding and ratas relief.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)
15. Craditors (continued)

(b) Amounts falling due after more than one year :
Other creditors 24,287 25402

Other creditors due after more than one year represents a loan from Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council
repayable in yearly instalments with annual interest charged at the Authority's actual General Fund
Borfowing Rate (currently approximately 2.4%). The amount repayable after more than five years is
£19,877 (2016 : £20,982). The amount due within one year is shown in note 15(a)

16. Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September lasses and 31 August
2016 Income Expenditure  transfers 2017
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 211,105 13,543,203  (13,BB6,996) 163,218 30,530
Start up grant 14,450 - (14,450) - -
Pupll PFremium = 2,061,351 {2,061,351) - -
LA (daficit) on conversion (26,507) - (676) 1,781 (25,402)
Other grants . 1,567,346  (1,567,346) . -
199,048 17,171,900 (17,530,819) 164,999 5,128
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 15,840,854 21,525,424 (923,968) - 36,442,310
DIE/ESFA capltal grants 353,335 801,000 (27.337) - 1,126,998
Capital expenditure from GAG 107,606 - (26,432) 219,001 300,175
Other capital grants 10,000 (320) - 9,670
From unrestricted funds 16,270 - (2,033 24,746 38,983
16,318,065 22,336,424 (980,100 243,747 37,918,136
Pension reserve (a,878,000)  (7,704,000) {839,000) 60,000 (13,361,000}
Total restricted funds 11,639,113 31,804,324 (19,349,919) 468,746 24,562,264
Unrestricted funds
Oiher incoma 1,004,160 2,136,793 (420,288) (408,746) 2,311,919
Total unrestricted funds 1,004,160 2,136,793 (420,288) (408,746) 2,311,919
Total funds 12,643,273 33,941,117 (19,770,207) 60,000 26,874,183

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general funds
These comprise all restricted funds other than restricted fixed asset funds and include grants from The Education
and Skills Funding Agency, Birmingham City Council and Dudley Metropalitan Couneil,

Under the funding agreement with the Sacratary of State, the multl academy trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2017.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)
16. Funds {(continued)

Unrestricted funds
These comprise resources that may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the multi academy
trust at the discration of the trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds
Thase comprise resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by The Education and

Skills Funding Agency, Birmingham City Council and Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council where the asset
acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2017 were allocated as follows :

Total 11 months to
2017 31/8/16
£ £

Audley Primary School 288,327 -
Beachwood Church of England Primary School 344,798 331,177
Hob Graan Primary School 18,333 -
Jervolsa School 342,975 297,411
Princethorpe Infant School 116,733 .
The Bromley-Pensnett Primary School (31,023) 65,745
The Oval School 583,438 -
Wychall Primary School 632,263 550,732
DRE Ignite Multi Academy Trust 21,203 (41,857)
Total before fixed assels and penslon resarva 2,317,047 1,203,208
Restricted fixed asset fund 37,918,136 16,318,065
Pension reserva (13,361,000)  (4,878,000)
Total funds 26,874,183 12,643,273

The Bromley-Pensnett Primary School is carrying a net deficit of £31,023 on funds before fixed assets and
pension reserve, This is due to an in-year reduction of early years pupil numbers which has raducad thair
funding.

At the start of the 2018/17 financlal year, the school estimated their early years pupil number funding to be
£121,091, Due 1o an in-year reduction of pupil numbers, this estimated funding has been reduced by (£25,325),
reducing estimated funding to actual funding of £95,766. As the school already had a tight budget, this left the
school In a cumulative deficit position at the end of the 2016/17 financial year

From September 2017, the school has admitted an additional 29 puplis which has had a very positive effect on
the schools budget, resulting In a projected surplus balance at the end of the 2017/18 financial year. The Trust is
working very closely with the school to monitor the budget / future year projections and will have regular meetings
golng forwards,
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16. Funds {continued)

17.

18.

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows :

Teaching & Other
aducational Other costs
suppart support Educational {excluding
staff costs staff cosis supplies depreciation) Total
£ £ E E £
Audley Primary School 2,771,594 673,212 206,261 794,883 4,445,950
Beechwood Church of England
Primary School 685,610 146,254 36,814 533,218 1,401,896
Hob Graen Primary School 848,010 282,201 50,082 205,904 1,366,197
Jervoise School 863,397 235,343 44,567 339,287 1,482,594
Princethorpe Infant School 717,958 268,472 29,728 275,436 1,291,595
The Bromley-Pensnatt Primary
School 997,762 274,417 17,692 313,900 1,603,771
The Oval School 2,480,384 632,661 93,086 731,678 3,937,809
Wychall Primary School 1,506,061 612,598 116,871 705,024 2,940,554
DRB Ignite Multi Acadamy Trust . 23,014 - 206,727 319,741
Academy trust 10,870,777 3,128,172 595101 4,196,057 18,780,107
2016 total 3,002,080 064,853 126,538 1,220,729 5,317,200
Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2017
are raprasented by: Restricted Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - . - 37,635,087 37,635,087
Current assets 2,311,919 1,289,751 283,049 3,884,719
Current liabilities . {1,260,326) (1,260,326)
2,311,919 - 29,425 37,918,136 40,259,480
Creditors due after one year - a {24,297) - (24,287)
Pension schemae liability - {13,361,000) - (13,361,000)
Total net assets 2,311,919  (13,361,000) 5128 37,918,136 26,874,183
Capital commitments
2017 2016
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 266,000 73,000
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19.

20.

21.

Commitments under operating leases

At 31 August 2017 the total of the multi acadamy
trust's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

Reconciliation of net incomel(expenditure) to net cash flow
from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for reporting year (as per the SoFA)
Adjusted for
Depreciation (note 13)
Capital grants from DfE and other capital incoma
Cash transferred on conversion to mulll academy trust
Assets transferred on conversion to multi acadamy trust
Loan daficit inherited on conversion to multi academy trust
Interest receivable (note &)
Defined benefit penslon scheme obligation inharitad

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 25)
Defined benefit pansion scheme finance cost/(income) (note 25)

Decreasa / (increase) in deblors
Inerease / (dacrease) in creditors
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

GCash flows from investing activities

Interest racalved

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DIE/ESFA
Capital funding from others

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities
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Other
Total Total
2017 2016
£ £
17,999 21,137
41,145 51,378
59,144 72,515
Total Taotal
2017 2016
£ £
14,170,910 14,574,273
980,099 326,683
{811,000) (383,378)
(1,555,929) (967,442)
(21,525,424) (16,159,010)
: 27,612
(1,675) (826)
7,704,000 2,753,000
1,049,000 265,000
(210,000) (71,000)
(412,808) (650,437)
572,248 686,973
(40,579) 401,448
Total 11 months to
2017 31/8/16
£ £
1,675 826
(845,028) (412,407)
811,000 364,175
. 19,203
(32,353) (28,203)
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22,

23.

24,

Cash flows from financing activities

At At
31 August 31 August
2017 2016
£ £
Loan repayments in period (1,105) {1,105)
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities (1,105) {1,105}
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
At At
31 August 31 August
2017 2016
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 2,821,474 1,339,582

2,821,474 1,339,582

Member's liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes o contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
mamber,

25, Penslon and similar obligations

The multl academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Wast Midlands Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined-
banafit schemas,

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the year ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March
2016.

Contributions amounting to £11,775 (2016 : £27 478) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2017 and are
included within creditors.
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25, Pension and simiiar obligations {continued)

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

Tha Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) Is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Ragulations
2014, Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for
teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt
out,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions along
with those made by employers are credited to the Exchaquer. Retirement and other pension benafits are paid by
public funds provided by Parllament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations
are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other faclors. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public
Service Penslons (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by
the Department for Education on 9 June 2014, The key alements of the valuation and subsequent consultation
are

+ employer conlribution rates sat at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration
charge (currantly 14.1%))

+ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional Investmants held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional past service deficit
of £14,900 million

« an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

+ the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% In excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real
earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

During the pravious year the employer coniribution rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an
employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015, The next valuation of the TPS is currently
underway based on April 2018 data, whereupon the employer contribution rate Is expacted to be reassessed and
will ba payable from 1 April 2019,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £881,598 (2016 | £255,798).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Penalons wabsite,

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted
for Its contributions to the scheme as If it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the
information avallable on the scheme,
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25, Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held In separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2017 was £1,000,984 (2016 : £505,152), of
which employer's contributions totalled £798,272 (2016 : £438,186) and employees’ contributions totalled
£202,712 (2016 : £65,956). The agreed coniribution rates for future years are between 17.4% and 22.2% for
amployers and betwaen 5,5% and 8.8% for employees.

Parllament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would ba met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

The trustaes have agreed that the trust will make additional contributions in addition to normal funding levels over

the next 32 years,

Principal actuarial assumptions

At 31 At 31
August 2017 August 2016
Rate of increase in salaries 4,20% 3.75%
Rate of Increase for pensions in paymant / inflation 2.70% 2.00%
Discount rate for echeme llabilities 2.60% 2.20%
inflation assumption (GPI1) 2.70% 2.00%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.00% 50.00%
Sensitivity analysis
As Discount Penslon In life
disciosed rate increases expactancy
+0.1% pa + 0.1% pa + 1 yoar
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Present value of total obligation 17,780 17,295 18,132 18,345
Projected sarvice cost 1,527 1,484 1,565 1,576
-0.1% pa -0.1% pa -1 year
£'000a £'000s £'000s £'0008
Prasent value of total ebligation 17,780 18,279 17,438 17,229
Projecied service cost 1,527 1,571 1,490 1,479
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25, Pension and similar obligations {continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future

improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age At 31 At 31
85 are: August 2017  August 2016
Ratiring today
Males 21.8 231
Females 243 258
Retiring in 20 years
Males 24.0 25.3
Femalas 266 281

The academy's share of the assets In tha scheme was!

Fair value Fair value

at at
31 August 31 August
2017 2016
£ £
Equilies 2,796,000 853,000
Government bonds 323,000 100,000
Other bonds 171,000 124,000
Property 323,000 116,000
Cash/liquidity 219,000 62,000
Other 587,000 165,000
Total market value of assets 4,418,000 1,440,000
The actual return on acheme assets was £557,000 (2016 : £193,000).
2017 2016
£ £
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities
Gurrent service cosi (net of employee contributions) 1,455,000 300,000
Nat interest cost 273,000 90,000
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 1,728,000 390,000
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25. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations
were as follows :

2017 2016
£ £

At 1 September 2016 6,318,000 .
Conversion of acadamy trusta 9,113,000 3,738,000
Current service cost 1,455,000 300,000
Interest cost 347,000 122,000
Changes In financlial assumptions 123,000 2,092,000
Change In damographic assumptions (117,000) -
Experlence (gain) on defined benefit obligation 473,000
Benefits paid net of transfers in (135,000) "
Contributions by parlicipants 203,000 66,000
At 31 August 2017 17,780,000 6,318,000
Changes in the fair value of academy’s share of acheme
assets were as follows ;

2017 2016

£ f

At 1 September 2016 1,440,000 .
Conversion of academy trusts 1,409,000 985,000
Interest incoma 74,000 32,000
Return on assets less interest 483,000 161,000
Othar actuarial (losses) 56,000 -
Employer contributions 889,000 196,000
Contributions by participants 203,000 66,000
Benefits paid net of transfars in {135,000) -
At 31 August 2017 4,419,000 1,440,000

26, Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the multi academy trust and the composition of tha board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trust
has an interest,
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26, Related party transactions (continued)

The following related party transaction(s) took place during the year:

drb Centract Cleaning Limited

A company in which Robert Bowater and David 2017 2016
Bagley (directors) have a direct interest t £
Services recharged to related company during the period - 12,078

drb Facilities Management Limited

A company in which Robert Bowater and David 2017 2016
Bagley (directors) have a direct interest £ £
Services recharged to related company during the period = 3,497

drb Ignite Limited

A company in which Robert Bowater, David 2017 2016

Bagley and Helen Morrison (directors) have a

direct interest £ £
Services recharged to related company during the period 20,920 10,527
Sarvices recharged from related company during the period - (16,488)
Amaunt due to related company at period end - 822

drb Schools and Academies Services Limited
(formerly drb Learning Limited)

A company in which Robert Bowater and David 2017 2016

Bagley (directors) have a direct interast £ &
Services racharged to related company during the period 1,840 458

drb Marketing Limited

A company in which Robart Bowater and David 2017 2016

Bagley (directors) have a direct interast £ £
Sarvices recharged to related company during the period 4,550 12,988
Amount dua to related company at perlad end . 9,318

drb Schools and Academies Limited

A company In which Robert Bowater and David 2017 2016

Bagley (directors) have a direct interast £ £
Services recharged to related eempany during the period 395,420 196,819
Amount due to related company at pariod end £ 2,539
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26,

27.

Related party transactions (continued)
Sue Egeradorff Associates Ltd

A company In which Sue Egersdorff (director) has
a direct interest

Services recharged to related company during the period
Amount due lo related company at pariod and

Learning Horizons Consultants Limited

A company in which Richard Martin (Chair of
Trustees) has a direct interast

Services recharged by related company during the year

Conversion to an academy trust

2017 2016
£ £
67,537 59,575
- 17,222
2017 2016
£ £
6,065

During the year the following schools converted to academy trust slatus under tha Academies Act 2010 and all
the opaerations and assets and liabilities were transferred to drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust from the relevant local

authorities for £nll consideration,

Date of
Academy conversion
Audley Primary School 1/10/16
Hob Green Primary School 111186
Princethorpe Infant School 111016
The Oval Scheol 1109116

Local Authority

Birmingham City Counail

Dudley Metropolitan Berough Council
Birmingham City Councli

Birmingham City Council

The transfers have been accounted for as a combination that Is in substance a gift, The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and racognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Aclivities as Donations —

transfer from local autherity on conversion,
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27. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

Tha following tables set aut the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the SOFA.

Audley Primary School
Restricted Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted pension general fixed asset Tatal
funds funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixad assets
Leasehold land and buildings - . . 7,600,999 7,600,999
Other tangible fixed assets . . : 345,187 345,187
Budget surplus/(deficit) on LA
funds 445,810 = = - 445,810
LGRS penslon (deficit) - (3,144,000) - - (3,144,000)
Other Identified assets - - - - f
Total not assets 445,810 (3,144,000) - 7,946,186 5,247,996

The abave net assets include £445 810 transferred as cash,

Hob Green Primary Schoaol
Restricted Restricted Restricted

Unrastricted pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings - - - 4,738,518 4,738,518
Other tangible fixed assets - - . 353,037 353,037
Budget surplus/(deficit) on LA
funds 83,178 - . - 83,178
LGPS pension (duﬂcil} . {1,198,000) = = (1,193,000)
Other identified assets 3,370 - a - 3,370
Total net assats 86,548 {1,198,000) s 5,091,555 3,980,103

Tha above net assets include £86,548 transferred as cash.
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27. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

Princethorpe Infant School
Restricted Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed asseis
Laasehold land and buildings . - . 2,626,863 2,626,863
Other tangible fixed assets . - . 41,361 41,361
Budget surplus/(deficit) on LA
funds 204,692 - . . 204,692
LGPS pension (deficit) - (838,000) - (838,000)
Other idantified assets 5,206 - - 5,206
Total not assets 209,898 (838,000) - 2,668,224 2,040,122
The above nat assets include £209,898 tranaferred as cash.
The Oval School
Restricted Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tanglble fixed assets
Leasehold land and bulldings . - . 5,794,361 5,794,361
Other tangible fixed assets - - . 25,098 25,098
Budget surplus/(deficit) on LA
funds BOG,594 B0G,594
LGPS pension (deficit) . (2,524,000) (2,524,000)
Other identified assels 3,910 - 3,910
Total not assets 810,504 (2,524,000) - 5,819,459 4,105,963

The above net assets include £810,504 transfarrad as cash,

The transfer agreements require the company to run the stated schools on their present site; transfer all proparty,
undertakings, rights, assets whether tangible or intangible to the academy trust; and set out the responsibilities of
the academies with regards to the employees of the former local authority controlled school. The transfers

include the lease of property for a period of 125 years,
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